WEST BEND.

Breadmaker Recipes



West Bend. Breadmaker Recipes

Welcome to the wonderful world of bread making. Little can compare to the delicious aroma of fresh bread baking in the kitchen and the anticipation that comes in waiting for the first slice. To help spread this enjoyment, included are bread recipes we have tested for your use with your new West Bend[®] Breadmaker.

Your West Bend Breadmaker requires very little effort on your part. Just measure the ingredients, place the bread pan into the oven chamber, program the control panel, and press "start." In as little as one hour, a loaf of fresh bread will be ready for you to enjoy. Or set the timer and wake up or come home to the fresh aroma of bread baking.

What a delight!



Please be sure to read and understand the Instruction Manual included with your breadmaker, including all of the safeguards, tips, and instructions. This recipe guide does not include all the important information required for safe and successful operation of your breadmaker. If you no longer have the Instruction Manual for your breadmaker, please see this guide's last page for contact information to acquire a replacement copy.

Happy Baking!

Additional Tips & Hints For Using Your Breadmaker

FOUR GOLDEN RULES TO SUCCESSFUL BREAD MAKING

- Measure the ingredients accurately with correct measuring cups and spoons.
- Add ingredients to the bread pan in the order listed: liquid ingredients first, followed by the butter, then the dry ingredients, and lastly the yeast in the center of the dry ingredients.
- Liquid ingredients should be lukewarm (approximately 80° F / 26.7° C); liquid that is too cool, such as refrigerated milk, or too hot may produce unacceptable results.
- Use the recommended bread setting for best results.

HIGH ALTITUDE ADJUSTMENT

Reduced air pressure at high altitudes causes yeast gases to expand more rapidly and the dough to rise more quickly. The dough can rise so much that when it begins to bake, it will collapse due to overstretching of the gluten structure. To slow the rising of the dough at high altitudes, reduce the amount of yeast by ¹/₄ teaspoon at a time until you find the right amount. You can also reduce the amount of liquid by a teaspoon or two. Some experimentation will be needed when using your breadmaker at high altitudes. Make note of the amount of yeast and liquid used for future reference.

SLICING BREAD

Always allow bread to cool at least 15 minutes before slicing. If you attempt to slice the bread immediately after baking, it will be very difficult to slice and will be sticky.

STORING BREAD

Since homemade bread contains no preservatives, it does not stay as fresh for as long as commercially made bread. Store your bread in a plastic bag or sealed storage container to keep it from drying out. Keep the bread at room temperature or in the refrigerator for up to one week. For longer storage, place the bread in the freezer. Slice before freezing so you can remove only the number of slices you need at a time.

SPECIAL NOTES ON FLOUR

Flours are affected by growing conditions, milling, storage, humidity and even the manufacturer. While not visibly different, you may need to make some minor adjustments when using different brands of flour as well as compensating for the humidity in your area. Always store your flour in an airtight container. Store whole grain flours such as whole wheat and rye in a refrigerator to prevent them from becoming rancid. In the event you are having trouble obtaining optimum results and you suspect it may be due to flour or humidity conditions, consider the following.

- Measure the amount of flour as directed in each recipe but make an adjustment after the first 8-10 minutes of kneading. The only time an adjustment can be made is during the kneading cycle; do not open the door once the bread machine has entered the rise cycle.
- During the kneading cycle, open the door and touch dough. If it feels a little sticky and smooth to the touch, no adjustment is necessary. If the dough is very sticky, clinging to the sides of the pan or in one corner, and is more like a batter than dough, add one tablespoon of flour. Allow it to work in before making any further adjustment.
- If the dough is dry and the machine seems to be laboring during kneading, add one tablespoon of lukewarm water at a time. Once again, allow it to work in before making any further adjustments.

You will know when the dough is just right near the end of the kneading cycle when it is soft to the touch, smooth in appearance and just a bit sticky, leaving a slight residue on your fingers — the feel of perfect dough.

Table of Contents

White

| Applesauce Oatmeal Bread 1 |
|-----------------------------|
| Bran Bread 1 |
| Country White Bread 2 |
| English Muffin Bread 2 |
| French Bread |
| Honey Oatmeal Bread |
| Oatmeal Bread |
| Old-Fashioned White Bread 4 |
| Yogurt Bread |

Whole Wheat

Herb

| Dill Bread |
|------------------------|
| French Garlic Bread 14 |
| Garlic Bread 15 |
| Herb Bread 15 |
| Italian Herb Bread16 |

Potato

| Potato Chive Bread | 17 |
|--------------------|----|
| Potato Bread | 17 |

Rye

| Classic Rye Bread | 18 |
|------------------------|----|
| Pumpernickel Rye Bread | 18 |
| Tomato Basil Rye Bread | 19 |

Sourdough

| Sourdough Bread | 20 |
|-----------------------|----|
| Sourdough Wheat Bread | 20 |

Sweet Bread

| Apricot Almond Bread 2 | I |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Apricot Almond Bread (Version 2) 2 | I |
| Boston Brown Bread 22 | 2 |
| Carrot Raisin Bread 22 | 2 |
| Cinnamon Oatmeal Raisin Bread 23 | 3 |
| Cranberry Pecan Bread 22 | 3 |
| Oatmeal Maple Pecan Bread 24 | 4 |
| Orange Wheat Bread 24 | 4 |
| Panettone | 5 |
| Raisin Bran Bread 2 2 | 5 |
| Raisin Bread | 6 |
| Spiced Fruit Bread 20 | 6 |
| Stollen Bread | 7 |

Variety

| Cheese Bread | 28 |
|---------------------------|----|
| Chili Bean Bread | 28 |
| Egg Bread 2 | 29 |
| Peanut Butter Bread 2 | 29 |
| Swiss Jalapeńo Beer Bread | 30 |
| Zucchini Bread | 30 |

White

Applesauce Oatmeal Bread

A great tasting all-purpose bread.

| Menu Selection : Basic or S | Super Rapid | | |
|------------------------------|----------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 4 fl oz (½ c) | 4 fl oz (½ c) | |
| Applesauce, unsweetened | 1⁄2 c | 3⁄4 c | |
| Vegetable Oil | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Oats, quick or old-fashioned | 1⁄2 c | ½ c | |
| Bread Flour | 2 ¼ c | 3 c | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 2 ¼ tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| -01- | -01- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |

BRAN BREAD

Add ready-to-eat bran flakes cereal to this recipe for a different texture and taste, plus added fiber and nutrition. Do not crush bran flakes into measuring cup when measuring. Flakes will become crushed during the kneading period.

| Menu Selection : Basic | or Super Rapid | | |
|------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Honey | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bran Flakes Cereal | 2/3 c | 1 c | 1 ¼ c |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 2/3 c | 3 ¾ с |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -or- | -or- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Country White Bread

This recipe uses water rather than milk which gives it a crispier crust. A classic white bread that everyone will love.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------------|------------------|------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 10 fl oz (1 ¼ c) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 ¼ с | 4 c | |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -or- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |

English Muffin Bread

Here's a bread that has the great taste of English muffins, but that you can make at home in your breadmaker. This bread is great toasted!

| Menu Selection : Basic o | or Super Rapid | | |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water | 7 fl oz (¾ cup + 2 tbsp) | 9 ½ fl oz (1 c + 3 tbsp) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | |
| Yellow Cornmeal | 3 tbsp | 1⁄4 c | |
| Dry Milk | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | ³ /4 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -0r- | -01- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

French Bread

Crusty on the outside, chewy on the inside. Just the way it should be!

| Menu Selection : French | | | |
|-------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 10 ½ fl oz (1 ¼ c + 1 tbsp) | 12 ½ fl oz (1 ½ c + 1 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tsp | 1 tubs | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 ½ c | 3 ¼ c | 4 ¼ c |
| Sugar | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -0r- | -01- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

HONEY OATMEAL BREAD

Use old-fashioned or quick cooking oats in this recipe, but do not use instant oatmeal. A very light textured bread with a crispy crust.

A good, all-purpose bread.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 9 ½ fl oz (1 c + 3 tbsp) | 13 fl oz (1 ½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Honey | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 ¼ c | 3 ½ c |
| Oats, quick or old-fashioned | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | 1 c |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -01- | -01- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

OATMEAL BREAD

A basic white bread with a touch of oats and hint of brown sugar. Made with milk, the crust is tender. Use old-fashioned or quick cooking oats, not instant oatmeal.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | |
|---------------------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Milk, 80° F | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ½ c | |
| Oat, quick or old fashioned | 1⁄2 c | 3⁄4 с | |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¹ / ₄ tsp | |
| -or- | -0r- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Old Fashioned White Bread

This recipe is made with milk for a tender crust and fine texture. Just like Grandma used to make, now you can too!

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|------------------------|--------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Milk | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | 13 fl oz (1½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | 4 c |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 1½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2¼ tsp |
| -or- | -01- | -01- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1½ tsp | 2 tsp |

YOGURT BREAD

The addition of plain yogurt adds a little tang to this bread, but very subtle. A good basic, general purpose bread.

| Menu Selection : Basic o | or Super Rapid | | |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 3 ½ fl oz (¼ c + 3 tbsp) | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Plain, Non-Fat Yogurt | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 c | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -01- | -0ľ- | -OI- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Whole Wheat

100% WHOLE WHEAT BREAD

A dense bread, packed with fiber since all whole wheat flour is used. Longer kneading cycle at wheat setting will provide great results. If bread collapses during the baking period, add 1 or 1 ½ tablespoons of vital wheat gluten to recipe for respective loaf size to prevent this from happening. Vital wheat gluten can be found in most health food stores.

| Menu Selection : Whole Wheat | | | |
|------------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | 11 ½ fl oz (1 ¼ c + 3 tbsp) |
| Egg, large | 1 | 1 | 1 |
| Molasses | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Honey | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 2 ¼ c | 3 ¼ с | 4 ¼ c |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -01- | -01- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

50% WHOLE WHEAT BREAD

For those that like a lighter textured wheat bread, this is the recipe for you. Contains equal amounts of bread and whole wheat flour.

| Menu Selection : Whole | e Wheat | | |
|------------------------|---------------|---------------------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 10 ½ fl oz (1 ¼ c + 1 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Honey | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 c | 1 ² / ₃ c | 2 c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 c | 1 ² / ₃ c | 2 c |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -or- | -OI- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

BUTTERMILK WHEAT BREAD

A moist, light textured wheat bread that's sure to please. A great bread for sandwiches.

| Menu Selection : Whole | Wheat | | |
|------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Buttermilk, 80° F | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 10 ½ fl oz (1 ¼ c +1 tbsp) | 14 fl oz (1 ¾ c) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | 1 ¼ c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 ¼ c | 2 c | 2 ² / ₃ c |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Baking Soda | 1⁄8 tsp | 1⁄4 tsp | ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -0r- | -or- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Carrot Wheat Bread

Shredded carrot adds a little color and flavor to this wheat bread. Good for sandwiches or with hearty soups. Nut or raisins may also be added for extra flavor.

| Menu Selection : Whole Whea | t | | |
|-----------------------------|-----------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Shredded Carrot | 1/3 c | 1⁄2 c | |
| Bread Flour | 3⁄4 c | 1 c | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 c | |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -10- | -01- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Ground Nuts, optional | 1⁄4 c | 1⁄3 c | |
| Raisins, optional | 1⁄4 c | 1⁄3 c | |

CRACKED WHEAT BREAD

The addition of cracked wheat to this recipe adds a little crunch and, of course, more fiber. A light, yet hearty and satisfying bread.

| Menu Selection : Whole | Wheat | | |
|------------------------|-------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 ½ fl oz (1 c + 1 tbsp) | 13 fl oz (1 ½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 ¼ c | 1 ¾ c | 2 ½ c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | 1 ¼ c |
| Cracked Wheat Cereal | 1/3 C | 1⁄2 c | ² / ₃ c |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Salt | 3⁄4 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -01- | -01- | -10- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Granola Bread

Granola breakfast cereal, non-fat plain yogurt and a little whole wheat flour add fiber and great taste to this bread. Good toasted or for sandwiches.

| Menu Selection : Basic o | r Super Rapid | | |
|--------------------------|-------------------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | |
| Plain, non-fat Yogurt | 1⁄3 c | 1⁄2 C | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ¼ c | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Granola Cereal | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Multi-Grain French

Seven grain cereal adds fiber to this French bread. Seven grain cereal is available in most health food stores and contains such grains as wheat, oats, millet, triticale, soybeans, buckwheat and yellow corn.

| Menu Selection : French | | | |
|-------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 7 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 3 tbsp) | 10 fl oz (1 ¼ c) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 c | 3 c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 3⁄4 C | 1 c | 1 c |
| 7-Grain Cereal | 1/4 C | 1⁄2 c | 1⁄2 c |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -or- | -0r- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Multi-Grain Wheat Bread

This whole wheat bread has a little crunch due to the addition of 7-grain cereal. A light textured, but fiber-filled bread, it's good toasted or for sandwiches. 7-grain cereal can be found at most health food stores.

| Menu Selection : Whole | e Wheat | | |
|------------------------|---------------|------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Honey | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1⁄4 C | 1 ¾ c | |
| Bread Flour | 3⁄4 C | 1 c | |
| 7-Grain Cereal | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Shredded Wheat Bread

ADD A COUPLE OF LARGE SHREDDED WHEAT CEREAL BISCUITS TO THIS BREAD FOR ADDED FIBER AND NUTRITION. The cereal blends right into the dough.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--|--|-------------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 9 ½ fl oz (1 c + 3 tbsp) | 13 fl oz (1 ½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Shredded Wheat Cereal | 1 ½ large biscuits, broken up (1 c) | 2 large biscuits, broken up (1 ½ c) | 2 large biscuits, broken up (1 ½ c) |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ² / ₃ c | 3 ¾ с |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Well worth a try if you have some cereal on hand.

SUNFLOWER OAT WHEAT BREAD

Sunflower seeds, oats and honey add a nutty flavor to this wheat bread WHICH USES BOTH WHOLE WHEAT FLOUR AND BREAD FLOUR.

| Menu Selection : Whole W | heat | |
|------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) |
| Honey | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | ² / _{3 C} | 1 c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 c |
| Oats, quick or old-fashioned | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄3 c |
| Sunflower Seeds, salted | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄3 c |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| -0r- | -or- | -07- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp |

WHEAT BARLEY BREAD

Bread flour, whole wheat flour and barley flakes create a great sandwich bread.

| Menu Selection : Who | le Wheat | | |
|----------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 ½ fl oz (1 c + 1 tbsp) | |
| Honey | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 1 c | 1 ½ c | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 c | 1 ½ c | |
| Rolled Barley Flakes | 1/3 c | 1⁄2 c | |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -0r- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

WHEAT BERRY BREAD

Add soaked wheat berries to this recipe for added fiber and crunch.

Wheat berries must be soaked to soften before using and can be found at health food stores. Bakes into a picture perfect loaf.

| Menu Selection : Whole Wheat | | | |
|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Vegetable Oil | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Honey | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Molasses | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 c | |
| Bread Flour | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | |
| Wheat Berries, soaked and drained | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 c | |
| Wheat Germ | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -07- | -0 r - | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

WHEAT BRAN BREAD

This bread includes unprocessed wheat bran for higher nutritional value, plus it's sweetened with honey.

| Menu Selection : Whole W | Wheat | | |
|--------------------------|---------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Honey | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ¾ с | |
| Unprocessed Wheat Bran | 1/3 c | 1⁄2 C | |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Wheat 'N Yogurt Bread

Use plain, non-fat yogurt as part of the liquid for this light textured wheat bread. A good, all purpose bread everyone will like.

| Menu Selection : Whole W | heat | | |
|--------------------------|---------|---------------|---------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound | 1 ½ Pound | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | | 8 fl oz (1 c) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) |
| Plain Nonfat Yogurt | | 1⁄2 c | 2/3 с |
| Butter or Margarine | | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | | 1 ¼ c | 1 ½ c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | | 2 c | 2 ³ ⁄ ₄ c |
| Dry Milk | | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Brown Sugar, packed | | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | | -01- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

WHOLE WHEAT OAT BRAN BREAD

A combination of bread flour, whole wheat flour and dry oat bran cereal sweetened with honey. Bakes into a nice loaf with a light texture.

| Menu Selection : Whole | e Wheat | | |
|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Honey | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 1 ¼ c | 1 ½ c | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 3⁄4 c | 1 ¼ c | |
| Dry Oat Bran Cereal | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1⁄2 tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |



Dill Bread

A very light textured bread with a hint of dill. Serve with soups, salads or as a warm loaf with dinner.

| Menu Selection : Bas | ic or Super Rapid | | |
|----------------------|-------------------|------------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | 4 c |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Dill Weed | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -0r- | -01- | -or- | -OI- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

FRENCH GARLIC BREAD

Chopped green onion and fresh garlic turn this French bread into a taste-tempting treat that smells wonderful while baking. Especially good with seafood, pasta dishes or salads.

| Menu Selection : Basic, Fre | nch or Super Rapid | |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 ¼ c | 3 ¼ c |
| Chopped Green Onion Tops | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Chopped Garlic Cloves | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Sugar | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ¼ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| -or- | -or- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |

GARLIC BREAD

Delightful aroma. Serve warm with your favorite Italian pasta dish.

| Menu Selection : Basi | c or Super Rapid | | |
|-----------------------|--|--|------------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | 4 c |
| Dry Milk | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Sugar | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Dried Parsley Flakes | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Garlic Powder | ¹ / ₂ - 1 tsp (to taste) | ³ ⁄ ₄ - 1 tsp (to taste) | $1 - 1 \frac{1}{2}$ tsp (to taste) |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -or- | -01- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Herb Bread

The combination of Herbs used in this bread will make your tastebuds come to life.

| Menu Selection : Basic | or Super Rapid | | |
|------------------------|---------------------------------|--|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Evaporated Milk, 80° | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Water, 80° F | 2 fl oz (¼ c) | 2 ² / ₃ fl oz (¹ / ₃ c) | |
| Vegetable Oil | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 ½ tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Celery Seed | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp | |
| Rubbed Sage | 3⁄4 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | |
| Ground Ginger | pinch | 1/8 tsp | |
| Marjoram | pinch | 1⁄8 tsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | |
| Cornmeal | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄3 c | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -O I - | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

ITALIAN HERB BREAD

Grated Parmesan cheese and Italian seasoning add a little zing to Italian Bread. Serve as a warm loaf with your favorite Italian dish, or slice it thick, butter and toast or grill to brown.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 8 ½ fl oz (1 c + 1 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 1 ¾ c | 2 ³ ⁄ ₄ c | 4 c | |
| Dry Milk | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Sugar | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Grated Parmesan Cheese | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Italian Seasoning | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -01- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp | 2 tsp | |

Potato Chive Bread

A fun variation of Potato Bread adding more flavor to go with your favorite soups and more.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | |
|---------------------------------------|------------------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Mashed Potatoes, leftover | 1⁄3 c | 1⁄2 c | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Freeze-dried Chives | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -07- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Potato Bread

An old-time favorite, updated using instant potato flakes. Save liquid from cooling potatoes to replace water in this recipe for added flavor.

| Menu Selection : Basi | ic or Super Rapid | | |
|-----------------------|---------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 9 fl oz (1 c + 2 tbsp) | 13 fl oz (1½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | <u>З ¾ с</u> |
| Instant Potato Flakes | 1/3 C | 1⁄2 c | ² /3 c |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -01- | -01- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |

Rye Bread

CLASSIC RYE BREAD

A light, but hearty rye that can be prepared with or without caraway seed, depending on your pleasure.

| Menu Selection : Basic, | Dark or Super Rapid | | |
|-------------------------|---------------------|------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 2 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 10 fl oz (1 ¼ c) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 1/3 c | 2 1/3 c | 3 c |
| Medium Rye Flour | 2/3 c | 1 c | 1 ¼ c |
| Dry Milk | 2 tsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Salt | ½ tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Caraway Seed | 1 tsp | 2 tsp | 2 tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -01- | -0r- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

PUMPERNICKEL RYE BREAD

A little bit of cocoa gives this bread its characteristic dark color. A good bread for a hearty sandwich.

| Menu Selection : Basic or | Super Rapid | | |
|---------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | 8 ½ fl oz (1 c + 1 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Molasses | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 ¼ c | 2 ² / ₃ c |
| Medium Rye Flour | 1/3 C | ½ c | ² /3 c |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1/3 C | ½ c | ² / ₃ c |
| Cocoa, unsweetened | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 ½ tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -or- | -or- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Tomato Basil Rye Bread

A great bread to serve with soups and salads.

| Menu Selection : Basic | or Super Rapid | | |
|------------------------|----------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Vegetable Oil | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Sun-Dried Tomatoes | 4 halves | 6 halves | |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Bread Flour | 1 ¾ c | 2 ¼ c | |
| Medium Rye Flour | 1⁄2 C | 1 c | |
| Dried Basil Leaves | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -07- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Sourdough

Sourdough Bread

Make your own sourdough starter for this bread. Once made, it will last a long time providing you take proper care of it. Share with friends.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Su | per Rapid | | |
|------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 4 fl oz (½ c) | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) |
| Sourdough Starter, room temp | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | 1 ¼ c |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ¾ c | 3 ½ c |
| Sugar | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Sourdough Wheat Bread

Use the same starter as for the Sourdough bread. This is a heartier sourdough bread as it uses half bread flour and half whole wheat flour.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Su | per Rapid | | |
|------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------|---------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 4 fl oz (½ c) | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 6 fl oz (¾ c) |
| Sourdough Starter, room temp | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | 1 ¼ c |
| Molasses | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 1 c | 1 ½ c | 1 tbsp |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 c | 1 ½ c | 1 ¾ c |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -10- | -01- | -OI- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

Apricot Almond Bread

Appricots and almonds turn this bread into a delightful breakfast bread. It's even great for lunch with a salad.

Do not add more appricots than recommended as the consistency of the dough will be affected.

| Menu Selection : Sweet Bread | | | |
|---|---------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 2 fl oz (¼ c) | 4 fl oz (½ c) | |
| Gerber Baby Food, apricots with tapioca | (1) 6 oz jar | (1) 6 oz jar | |
| Vegetable Oil | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Almond Extract | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 ½ c | 3 ¼ с | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 2 ¼ tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| Dried Apricots, quartered | 1⁄2 C | 2⁄3 c | |
| Slivered Almonds | 1⁄2 C | 2⁄3 C | |

Apricot Almond Bread (Version 2)

A slight variation of the above recipe.

| Menu Selection : Sweet Bre | ad | | |
|----------------------------|--------------|------------------|-------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | | 10 fl oz (1 ¼ c) | 11 ½ fl oz (1 ¼ c + 3 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | | 3 ¼ c | <u>З ¾ с</u> |
| Dry Milk | | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Brown Sugar, packed | | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Salt | | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Ground Nutmeg | | ½ tsp | 3⁄4 tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | | -01- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Chopped, dried Apricots | | 1⁄2 c | ² / ₃ c |
| Blanched, slivered Almonds | | 1⁄4 c | 1/3 c |

BOSTON BROWN BREAD

This recipe uses a combination of flours and is sweetened with molasses and brown sugar with a crunch of almonds.

| Menu Selection : Sweet 1 | Bread or Brown Bread | | |
|--------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Buttermilk, 80° F | 5 fl oz (½ c + 2 tbsp) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Egg, large | 1 | 1 | |
| Molasses | 1 tbsp | 1⁄4 C | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 1 ½ c | 2 ¼ c | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Rye Flour | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 tbsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1⁄2 tsp | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | |
| Baking Soda | 1⁄4 tsp | 1⁄2 tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Slivered Almonds | 1⁄4 C | 1/3 C | |
| Raisins | ¹ ⁄ ₄ c | ¹ /2 c | |

CARROT RAISIN BREAD

A great-tasting variation of an old favorite. The carrots not only add more color but more flavor, too.

| Menu Selection : Sweet | | | |
|------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Mayonnaise | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Grated Carrots | 1/3 C | 1⁄2 C | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 ¼ c | |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Raisins | ¹ / ₄ c | 1⁄3 c | |

A different twist to conventional raisin bread with the addition of oats. Use either old-fashioned or quick-cooking oats, not instant oatmeal.

| Menu Selection : Sweet | | | |
|------------------------------|---------------|---------------------------|-------------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Milk | 8 fl oz (1 c) | 11 fl oz (1 ¼ c + 2 tbsp) | 13 fl oz (1 ½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ¾ c | 3 ¼ c |
| Oats, quick or old-fashioned | 1⁄2 C | 3⁄4 c | 1 c |
| Brown Sugar, packed | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Ground Cinnamon | 1 tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -or- | -10- | -01- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Raisins | 1/3 C | 1⁄2 c | ² / ₃ c |

CRANBERRY PECAN BREAD

A great bread for Thanksgiving or other holidays when cranberries are available.

| Menu Selection : Sweet B | read | | |
|--------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Milk, 80° F | 2 ½ fl oz (¼ c + 1 tbsp) | 3 ½ fl oz (¼ c + 3 tbsp) | |
| Egg, large | 1 | 1 | |
| Fresh Orange Sections | ¹ / ₄ c | ¹ /4 c | |
| Vegetable Oil | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 ¼ c | 3 c | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Fresh Whole Cranberries | ½ c | ² /3 c | |
| Grated Orange Peel | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Pecan Halves | ¹ / ₄ c | 1⁄3 C | |

A slight variation to typical oatmeal bread with the addition of pecans. Use either old-fashioned or quick-cooking oats, not instant oatmeal.

| Menu Selection : Sweet Bre | ad | | |
|------------------------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Maple Flavored Syrup | 3 tbsp | 1⁄3 c | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ½ c | |
| Oats, quick or old-fashioned | 1⁄2 c | ³ / ₄ c | |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -01- | -0r- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Chopped Pecans | 1/3 C | ½ c | |

Orange Wheat Bread

This recipe has both orange juice and grated orange peel to add a citrus flavor. A light textured breakfast-type bread worth trying.

| Menu Selection : Whole W | Wheat | | |
|--------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Orange Juice | 2 ½ fl oz (¼ c + 1 tbsp) | 4 fl oz (½ c) | |
| Water, 80° F | 4 fl oz (½ c) | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | ² / ₃ c | 1 c | |
| Whole Wheat Flour | 1 ¼ c | 2 c | |
| Wheat Germ | 3 tbsp | 1⁄4 C | |
| Grated Orange Peel | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Dry Milk | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

$P_{A\,N\,E\,T\,T\,O\,N\,E}$

This recipe originated in Italy where it is still a favorite holiday fruit bread.

| Menu Selection : Sweet | Bread | | |
|------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|---------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 4 fl oz (½ c) | 4 ½ fl oz (½ c + 1 tbsp) | 8 fl oz (1 c) |
| Egg, large | 1 | 2 | 2 |
| Vanilla Extract | 1⁄4 tsp | 1⁄2 tsp | 1⁄2 tsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 2 tbsp | 1⁄4 C | 3 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | 4 c |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 1⁄4 C | 3 tbsp |
| Salt | 1⁄2 tsp | 1⁄2 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 1⁄2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -0r- | -or- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Raisins | 1/4 C | 1⁄2 C | 1⁄2 C |
| Mixed Fruit and Peel | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄2 c | 1⁄2 C |
| Slivered Almonds | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Grated Lemon Peel | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |

RAISIN BRAN BREAD

What better bread to wake up to in the morning! Warm from the breadmaker or toasted, a great way to start the day.

| Menu Selection : Basic or | Super Rapid | | |
|---------------------------|------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 9 ½ fl oz (1 c + 3 tbsp) | 12 fl oz (1 ½ c) |
| Honey | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Raisin Bran Cereal | 1 c | 1 ½ c | 2 c |
| Raisins | 1⁄3 c | 1⁄2 c | 3⁄4 C |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ² / ₃ c | 3 ¾ с |
| Dry Milk | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 3⁄4 tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Ground Cinnamon | 3⁄4 tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -10- | -10- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

RAISIN BREAD

An absolutely delightful way to start the day!

| Menu Selection : Basic | or Super Rapid | | |
|------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 10 ½ fl oz (1 ¼ c + 1 tbsp) | 12 ½ fl oz (1 ½ c + 2 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 ¼ с | 4 c |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 ½ tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ¾ tsp |
| Ground Cinnamon | ½ tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -01- | -or- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Raisins | 1⁄2 c | ³ /4 c | 1 c |
| Chopped Nuts | 1⁄4 c | 1/4 c | 1/3 C |

Spiced Fruit Bread

A spicy twist to a holiday tradition.

| Menu Selection : Sweet Br | ead | | |
|------------------------------|--------------------|------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 1 ½ fl oz (3 tbsp) | 1 fl oz (2 tbsp) | |
| Cottage Cheese, 80° F | 1/3 C | 3⁄4 c | |
| Egg, large | 1 | 2 | |
| Vegetable Oil | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Ground Nutmeg | 1⁄4 tsp | ½ tsp | |
| Ground Cloves | pinch | 1⁄8 tsp | |
| Ground Mace | pinch | 1⁄8 tsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -or- | -or- | -or- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |
| Raisins | 1/4 C | 1/3 c | |
| Craisins (dried cranberries) | 1/4 C | 1/3 c | |

This is the easy way to make stollen bread for the holidays or any time of the year. After baking, dust with powdered sugar or drizzle with a powdered sugar icing before slicing.

| Menu Selection : Sweet B | Bread | | |
|--------------------------|---------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 5 fl oz (⅔ c) | 7 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | 8 ½ fl oz (1 c + 1 tbsp) |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ½ c | 4 tbsp |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 3 tbsp |
| Salt | 1⁄2 tsp | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -01- | -or- | -10- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Red Candied Cherries | 2 tbsp | 1⁄4 C | 1/3 C |
| Green Candied Cherries | 2 tbsp | 1⁄4 C | 1/3 C |
| Raisins | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄4 C | 1/3 C |
| Chopped Nuts | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 c | 1/3 C |



Cheese Bread

A hint of sharp cheddar cheese adds a delightful flavor to this bread. Make sure the shredded cheese is frozen when added at the alert for best results.

| Menu Selection : Sweet Bread | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|-------------------------------|------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Water, 80° F | 4 fl oz (½ c) | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 10 fl oz (1 ¼ c) |
| Egg, large | 1 | 1 | 1 |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ¾ c | 4 c |
| Sugar | 2 tsp | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -07- | -or- | -0r- | -or- |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |
| Shredded Sharp Cheddar Cheese, frozen | 1⁄2 C | ³ ⁄ ₄ c | 1 c |

Chili Bean Bread

A bread recipe with a southwestern flair.

| Menu Selection : Basic or S | uper Rapid | | |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Water, 80° F | 4 ½ fl oz (½ c + 1 tbsp) | 7 fl oz (¾ c + 2 tbsp) | |
| Vegetable Oil | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Fat-Free Refried Beans | 3⁄4 c | 1 c | |
| Sugar | 2 tbsp | 3 tbsp | |
| Salt | ³ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1 tsp | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | |
| Corn Meal | 1/3 c | 1⁄2 c | |
| Chili Powder | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | |
| Dried Onion Flakes | 1 ½ tsp | 1 tbsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -01- | -or- | -01- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Egg Bread

Eggs add a special flavor to this bread. A very tender bread due to using both eggs and milk.

| Menu Selection : Basic of | or Super Rapid | | |
|---------------------------|-----------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | 2 Pound Loaf |
| Milk | 5 ½ fl oz (⅔ c) | 6 ½ fl oz (¾ c + 1 tbsp) | 9 ½ fl oz (1 c + 3 tbsp) |
| Egg, large | 1 | 2 | 2 |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Bread Flour | 2 ¼ c | 3 ¼ c | 4 c |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tsp | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ¼ tsp | 1 ½ tsp |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | 2 ¼ tsp |
| -or- | -or- | -10- | -or |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp |

PEANUT BUTTER BREAD

This recipe is for all the peanut better lovers. Use creamy or chunky-style peanut butter. All that's left is to spread on the jelly after it is baked.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------|--|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | | |
| Water, 80° F | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | | |
| Peanut Butter, creamy or chunky | ¹ / ₃ c | ½ c | | |
| Honey | 1 tbsp | 1 tbsp | | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 2 ¾ с | | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | | |
| Salt | ¹ / ₄ tsp | ½ tsp | | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 2 tsp | 2 ½ tsp | | |
| -0r- | -10- | -10- | | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | | |

Swiss Jalapeño Beer Bread

If you like Jalapeńos, you'll love this recipe!

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | 1 | | |
|--|--|-------------------|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | |
| Beer, 80° F, foam removed | 6 fl oz (¾ c) | 8 fl oz (1 c) | |
| Vegetable Oil | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Medium Rye Flour | 1⁄2 C | ³ /4 c | |
| Bread Flour | 1 ³ ⁄ ₄ c + 1 tbsp | 2 ½ c + 2 tbsp | |
| Sugar | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | |
| Salt | 3⁄4 tsp | 1 tsp | |
| Grated Swiss Cheese | 1⁄3 C | 1⁄2 c | |
| Chopped Jalapeño Peppers, well drained | 1 tbsp | 1 ½ tbsp | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 ¼ tsp | |
| -01- | -or- | -10- | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | |

Zucchini Bread

Make this bread when you have a little extra zucchini to use from your garden. Make sure to blot the shredded zucchini dry, as it contains a lot of water.

| Menu Selection : Basic or Super Rapid | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|--|
| INGREDIENTS | 1 Pound Loaf | 1 ½ Pound Loaf | | |
| Water, 80° F | 2 fl oz (¼ c) | 4 fl oz (½ c) | | |
| Egg, large | 1 | 1 | | |
| Butter or Margarine | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | | |
| Shredded Zucchini, blotted dry | ² / _{3 C} | 1 c | | |
| Bread Flour | 2 c | 3 c | | |
| Chopped Nuts | 1⁄4 C | 1⁄2 c | | |
| Dry Milk | 1 tbsp | 2 tbsp | | |
| Sugar | 1 ½ tbsp | 2 tbsp | | |
| Salt | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | | |
| Ground Cinnamon | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | | |
| Ground Cloves | ¹ ⁄ ₄ tsp | 1⁄2 tsp | | |
| Ground Nutmeg | 1⁄8 tsp | ¹ / ₄ tsp | | |
| Active Dry Yeast | 1 ½ tsp | 2 tsp | | |
| -01- | -or- | -01- | | |
| Bread Machine Yeast | 1 tsp | 1 ½ tsp | | |

©2007 West Bend®, a Brand of Focus Electrics, LLC

For additional copies of the West Bend Breadmaker Instruction Manual or information regarding your product, visit our website at www.focuselectrics.com

> Or write: Focus Electrics, LLC Attn: Customer Service P.O. Box 2780 West Bend, WI 53095

©2007 West Bend®, a Brand of Focus Electrics, LLC